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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2018, 11:19 A.M.

2 (Court was called to order)

3           MS. OCHOA:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Angela Ochoa on

4 behalf of the defendants Robert Chur, Steve Fogg, Mark Garber,

5 Carol Harter, Robert Hurlbut, Barbara Lumpkin, Jeff Marshall,

6 and Eric Stickels.

7           THE COURT:  Thank you.

8           MR. OGILVIE:  Good morning, Your Honor.  George

9 Ogilvie on behalf of US Re Corporation, Uni-Ter Underwriting

10 Management Corporation, and Uni-Ter Claims Services.

11           THE COURT:  Thank you.

12           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Brenoch

13 Wirthlin on behalf of plaintiff.

14           THE COURT:  Thank you.  We have two motions today. 

15 The first is the Uni-Ter motion to dismiss the negligent

16 misrepresentation claim of the third amended complaint.  And

17 then we have the Chur motion to dismiss the first amended

18 complaint.  Let’s take the Uni-Ter motion first.  I’d like to

19 argue all of Uni-Ter and then all of the Chur motion before I

20 rule on both.

21           Mr. Ogilvie.

22           MR. OGILVIE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Before I

23 commence, Your Honor, let me compliment you on your choice of

24 law clerks.  I met -- 

25           THE COURT:  Do you know Mr. Cameron?

2
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1           MR. OGILVIE:  I met him as a -- when he was a

2 first-year law student and I tried to hire him when he was a

3 second-year law student.

4           THE COURT:  Well, I got him.  I got lucky.

5           MR. OGILVIE:  As the Court indicated, this is the

6 Uni-Ter Underwriting Management Corporation’s motion to dismiss. 

7 I know that the Court reads everything and is pretty familiar

8 with --

9           THE COURT:  You know, we do, but I -- I don’t want to

10 cut you off, either.

11           MR. OGILVIE:  No, but I'm not going to belabor the

12 factual background is what I was going to indicate.  I will

13 certainly get into the legal arguments.  But just as a summary

14 of the factual background, the receiver for Lewis and Clark

15 brought five causes of action against the individual directors

16 represented by Ms. Ochoa.  That is the first and second claim

17 for relief.

18           The third claim for relief is the one that is being

19 challenged by this motion today, that is negligent

20 misrepresentation, purportedly committed by Uni-Ter Underwriting

21 Management Corp, which is a sister corporation to Uni-Ter Claims

22 Services Corp, which is named along with Uni-Ter Underwriting

23 Management in the fourth claim for relief.  And then the fifth

24 claim for relief is solely against US Re Corporation, which I

25 also represent.

3
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1           Both Uni-Ter Claims Services Corporation and US Re

2 have answered the complaint, and the only matter in dispute

3 prior to moving forward with, as it relates to my clients,

4 before we move forward with this litigation is the motion

5 currently brought by Uni-Ter, what we refer to as Uni-Ter UMC,

6 but I may just refer to it as Uni-Ter.  And in that reference

7 I'm only referring to Uni-Ter Underwriting Management Corp as

8 opposed to Uni-Ter Claims Services Corporation.

9           So, again, the only claim for relief that is being

10 challenged by this motion is the claim for negligent

11 misrepresentation brought against Uni-Ter UMC.  As we stated in

12 the motion and in our reply brief, the basis for the motion is

13 that the allegations of negligent misrepresentation are

14 essentially superseded by the claims brought by the receiver

15 against the individual directors, and that is that there was no

16 justifiable reliance on the part of the company Lewis and Clark,

17 which is a risk retention group.

18           And as I get into the facts and -- the facts and the

19 law kind of intersect as -- as we go through an analysis of the

20 motion.  We have indicated in our moving papers the allegations

21 set forth by the receiver, the plaintiff, against the individual

22 directors, which, as we indicate in our reply brief, essentially

23 plead them out of an allegation of negligent misrepresentation

24 brought against my client, Uni-Ter UMC.

25           And we indicated, cited, the -- the Sprewell versus

4
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1 Golden State Warriors case out of the Ninth Circuit which

2 indicated that a plaintiff can plead himself out of a claim by

3 including factual allegations contrary to the factual elements

4 of his claims.  And Uni-Ter’s position in this motion is that

5 the receiver has done exactly that.

6           And we have cited the -- the allegations set forth in

7 the third amended complaint, which -- which are entirely

8 contradictory and completely negate any claim against -- against

9 Uni-Ter UMC for negligent misrepresentation on the basis that

10 the allegation set forth by the receiver in the third amended

11 complaint indicate that there wasn’t any justifiable reliance,

12 which is one of the elements of negligent misrepresentation.

13           And when I say justifiable reliance, it’s justifiable

14 reliance on behalf of the board of directors of Lewis and Clark

15 which, and this is jumping ahead a little bit, but as I say, the

16 facts and the law intersect in this argument.  It’s important to

17 point out, and it’s set forth in the briefs of all the parties,

18 there isn't any dispute as to the composition of Lewis and

19 Clark.

20           Lewis and Clark is a risk retention group that is

21 comprised of individual long-term care facilities.  So the

22 long-term care facilities get together and form this risk

23 retention group for which Uni-Ter was essentially the manager. 

24 And -- and this gets to one of the arguments made by -- by the

25 receiver that there can't be any imputation of the knowledge of

5
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1 the board to the company.

2           Well, let’s just examine what the company is.  I mean,

3 as I said, Lewis and Clark is comprised of these long-term care

4 facilities.  They are the members of this company.  And in this

5 instance it is a corporation, so they are the shareholders. 

6 There aren't any other shareholders other than the members which

7 are the long -- long-term care facilities.  Each one of these

8 long-term -- well, each member of the board is a representative

9 of these facilities.

10           So getting away from the law, because sometimes we

11 cherry -- lawyers cherry pick pieces of cases and -- and make

12 legal argument and just focus on whether there is -- there can

13 be imputed to the company the knowledge held by the board.  And

14 if we look at it just in common sense in this instance, when we

15 have information provided to the board, and the board is

16 comprised of members or representatives of the shareholders, and

17 the shareholders are the only members of the company, who are we

18 talking about?  We’re talking about they're all the same.  There

19 isn't any division between directors and shareholders.

20           THE COURT:  Well, there -- there is a legal

21 distinction, though, is there not?

22           MR. OGILVIE:  No.

23           THE COURT:  Even -- even --

24           MR. OGILVIE:  And that gets to the sole actor rule

25 that is cited in our reply brief.  And that states that when

6
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1 there is -- when the corporation and its agents, in this case

2 the agents being the board, are indistinguishable from each

3 other, there is a uniform, for purposes of the law, the parties

4 are the same.  You can't distinguish between the corporation and

5 its board because they are all one and the same.

6           And that comes straight out of the USACM Liquidating

7 Trust case cited in our reply brief that shows that there is no

8 difference between the board and the shareholders such that any

9 information provided to the board is imputed to the shareholders

10 because the board is comprised of the shareholders.  So it is --

11           THE COURT:  Well, the shareholders are individual

12 entities and the board is individuals, and that’s what I meant

13 as far as the distinction.

14           MR. OGILVIE:  Sure.  Okay.

15           THE COURT:  Okay.  That’s what I meant.

16           MR. OGILVIE:  I see what you mean, but there is no --

17           THE COURT:  Because it’s the entities that are the

18 members, and then there are representatives of those who I

19 assume were the Chur group.

20           MR. OGILVIE:  Let me -- let me draw a distinction.

21           THE COURT:  Please.

22           MR. OGILVIE:  We don’t have a board of directors here

23 that -- of a -- of a large corporation that is -- whether it’s

24 publicly held or privately held, it doesn’t really matter --

25           THE COURT:  And --

7
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1           MR. OGILVIE:  -- where you have --

2           THE COURT:  -- I don’t understand.  Were the -- the

3 individual members of the board of directors also principals of

4 the members, or are they independent?

5           MR. OGILVIE:  No, they weren't independent, and that

6 was the distinction that I was going to draw.

7           THE COURT:  Okay.

8           MR. OGILVIE:  There aren't any third-party independent

9 board members here.  They are all selected by the individual

10 members, the shareholders, the long-term care facilities.

11           THE COURT:  Okay.  That’s what I had thought all

12 along, but I'm sorry your argument confused me on that this

13 morning.

14           MR. OGILVIE:  I'm sorry.

15           THE COURT:  Thank you for clarifying that.

16           MR. OGILVIE:  I'm sorry.  So the board of directors,

17 and there isn't any dispute about this, the board of directors

18 is comprised of representatives of the shareholders.  They are

19 selected by the individual shareholders.

20           THE COURT:  Right.

21           MR. OGILVIE:  And, you know, for instance, there is

22 the Oneida (phonetic), which is represented by the -- by Mr.

23 Stickels, who is the board member which is being sued.  So

24 Oneida is the long -- it’s just an example, but it’s the same

25 for all of them.  Oneida Health is one of the long-term care

8
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1 facilities.  It chose Mr. Stickels to be its representative on

2 the board.  He’s on the board.  He’s being sued as a board

3 member.

4           So there is no distinction between the board and the

5 shareholders in that the shareholders all have representatives

6 on the board.  So that gets to one of the rules that is the

7 exception to the adverse interest exception, that is argued by

8 the receiver in opposition to our motion.  And essentially when

9 we look at the adverse interest exception in that information

10 relayed to a board or another agent can’t be imputed to the

11 corporation, again, there is a vast difference to independent

12 directors receiving information and perhaps acting on their own.

13           And, again, the Nevada Supreme Court case, Amerco,

14 indicated to some very limited exceptions to that adverse

15 interest exception.  And, again, the -- the general agency rule

16 is that information related to an agency is imputed --

17 in-running to an agent is imputed to the agency, is imputed to

18 the corporation.  What receiver, the receiver has relied upon is

19 this limited exception, the adverse interest exception.

20           And as the Supreme Court, the Nevada Supreme Court

21 stated in the In Re Amerco Derivative Litigation, these are --

22 it’s a very limited exception.  It’s stated that the exception

23 is very narrow, and it only occurs in a narrow exception of

24 cases in which there may be outright theft, looting, or

25 embezzlement of the -- by the director or the agent against the

9
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1 interests of the corporation.

2           We don’t have any allegation.  We have an allegation

3 of gross negligence, but we don’t have any allegation in this

4 instance by the receiver against the individual directors that

5 they were somehow feathering their own nest by this gross

6 negligence.  And that’s Uni-Ter’s position.

7           THE COURT:  And instead they pled a deepening of the

8 insolvency.

9           MR. OGILVIE:  Correct.

10           THE COURT:  Right.  In lieu of.

11           MR. OGILVIE:  Well, in lieu of feathering their own

12 nests?  No, I don’t believe so.  Again, what we have is the --

13 the member facilities being represented by their -- their

14 representatives on the board of directors, and any action taken

15 by that board of directors to the detriment of the corporation

16 is going to be a detriment to the facility that they represent. 

17 They are a principal of that facility.  So they're only hurting

18 themselves if they were taking some action.  And the Court

19 pointed out a deepening of --

20           THE COURT:  Or failing to act.

21           MR. OGILVIE:  Or failing to act.  Okay.  And any act

22 or omission.  The Court mentioned a deepening insolvency. 

23 That’s only if --

24           THE COURT:  It’s collateral.

25           MR. OGILVIE:  Yes.  If -- if the deepening insolvency

10
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1 hurts Lewis and Clark, it hurts each one of the members.  So

2 there isn't an action taken, and there isn't any allegation that

3 the individual directors were pocketing money by their acts or

4 omissions.  And so what we’re left with is the only -- the only

5 benefit that would inure as a result of this act or omission

6 would be to their own facility.

7           But by definition of the facts of this case and the

8 composition of the risk retention group, any act or omission

9 that hurts Lewis and Clark hurts the individual members.  So

10 there isn't an allegation that there was an adverse action or

11 omission taken by the individual board members that would

12 benefit anybody.  They just simply failed to act or acted

13 improperly.

14           So the adverse interest exception which is cited by

15 the receiver doesn’t apply.  Even if it did apply as we argued

16 and as I -- as I already set forth, there is no distinction,

17 factual distinction here between the board and the -- and the

18 individual shareholders such that the sole actor rule would take

19 this out of the adverse -- adverse interest exception.

20           The other argument that the plaintiff has made in

21 opposition to the motion to dismiss is that it is generally

22 understood, and certainly Uni-Ter doesn’t dispute the fact that

23 a party can -- a plaintiff can assert alternative claims for

24 relief, but that’s not what we have here.  An alternative -- a

25 classic claim for alternative relief or alternative claims for

11

APP00576



1 relief in a commercial context would be a claim for breach of

2 contract and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and

3 fair dealing.

4           Both claims rely and are founded upon the same set of

5 factual allegations and it’s just a matter of whether or not the

6 -- the breach that’s described in the factual allegations arise

7 to a level of, okay, the defendant satisfied the letter of the

8 contract, but didn’t satisfy the -- the spirit of the contract. 

9 Or, alternatively, that the breach, the allegations of breach

10 that are described in the factual allegations rise beyond that

11 to actually constitute a material breach of the letter of the

12 contract.  That’s alternative pleading.

13           What we have here is entirely inconsistent pleading. 

14 And as I said under the Sprewell versus Golden State Warriors

15 case, plaintiff has essentially pled itself out of the

16 allegations against Uni-Ter for providing purportedly inaccurate

17 and unreliable information to the board of directors.  And we

18 cited in our moving papers several of the allegations.  And I

19 just want to focus on a few of them for purposes of the argument

20 today.

21           The allegation in paragraph 122 of the third amended

22 complaint states despite this knowledge, and, again, it’s the

23 knowledge of the information provided by Uni-Ter, the board

24 failed to exercise even a slight degree of diligence or care

25 with respect to accepting the information and recommendations
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1 provided by Mr. Elsass and Uni-Ter UMC and failed to verify

2 whether this information was accurate and whether the

3 recommendations should be adopted.

4           And then the -- in paragraph 145, and they qualify

5 paragraph 145 on information and belief.  But I -- I think it’s

6 fairly apparent, and I think it’s very apparent, that that

7 qualification is -- is misplaced.  Because the allegation is on

8 information and belief, the minutes of the October 5, 2011,

9 action taken by the board demonstrate that the board was

10 well-aware it was not receiving accurate and complete

11 information from Uni-Ter.

12           Well, the receiver, the plaintiff here, has the

13 documents.  They -- they see what the minutes of the October 5,

14 2011, meeting state.  And in the receiver’s allegations, those

15 minutes demonstrate, in paragraph 145, the -- the plaintiff

16 states that those minutes demonstrate that the board was

17 well-aware it was not receiving accurate and complete

18 information from Uni-Ter.

19           Whether or not they pleaded on information and belief,

20 this is the allegation that the receiver is stating, that those

21 minutes that the receiver is looking at indicate, demonstrate

22 that the board was well-aware it was not receiving accurate and

23 incomplete -- or it was not receiving accurate and complete

24 information from Uni-Ter.

25           And let me also digress for just a moment.  This is an
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1 instance that the facts demonstrate that there was an order of

2 liquidation entered by Judge Gonzalez on February 28, 2013,

3 three and a half year ago.  That order of liquidation, and its

4 attached as Exhibit 1 to the third amended complaint, in

5 paragraph 3 of that order of liquidation it says that the

6 receiver is hereby authorized to collect all the property, all

7 of the papers, all of the documents.

8           And so the receiver, for three and a half years, has

9 been in possession of all of the property, all of the documents,

10 all of the -- the board minutes.  So this isn't a situation in

11 which there is a -- an alternative claim for relief because the

12 plaintiff is somehow deprived of the information necessary to

13 assert the factual allegations against a defendant.  The

14 plaintiff, the receiver, for three and a half years has been in

15 possession of all of the documentation that support.

16           Now, I read in -- in the receiver’s opposition to the

17 individual directors’ motion to dismiss that through the actions

18 of the board it -- it may not have all the documents that it

19 needs to support its claims.  But what we do know from the

20 allegations set forth, and they are very precise in the

21 documentation that is in possession of the -- of the receiver,

22 and which the receiver based its allegations, it is very precise

23 in -- in the documentation and what that documentation shows as

24 it relates to the allegations against the board of directors.

25           And that is set forth and summarized in the receiver’s
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1 supplement to the opposition of the individual directors’ motion

2 to dismiss which the receiver filed on September 8th last week,

3 a week ago today.  And if we go to page 4 of that opposition, it

4 -- it states -- actually, if we start at the bottom of page 3. 

5 The receiver states, however, below is a brief summary of the

6 information supporting the claims as set forth more fully in the

7 complaint and incorporated by reference herein.

8           And all of this information as the receiver states and

9 as I reviewed the -- the -- and compared the allegations

10 summarized in its opposition to the individual directors’ motion

11 to dismiss with the third amended complaint, all of the

12 information set forth that I'm about to cite the Court to is

13 included in -- in the third amended complaint.

14           And the receiver states, for example, as of the end of

15 2011 there was an overwhelming amount of information that

16 clearly showed that L&C’s, Lewis and Clark’s, financial

17 condition was in peril.  The information available to the board

18 at that time showed a rapid and drastic increase in loss

19 reserves, reports of inadequate reserves requiring repeated

20 capital infusions in late 2011 and early 2012, high loss

21 rations, drastically decreasing realized premiums, absence of

22 any adjustment of premium rates, implementation of a new

23 underwriting philosophy that would result in a 35 to 40 percent

24 drop in premiums, and a drastically decreasing company surplus.

25           Had the board properly informed itself of the
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1 financial situation of L&C, it would have known the following,

2 which include pertinent items from the information available to

3 the board at that time.  These are not on information and

4 belief.  The allegation is that the board had this information,

5 and the allegation is made based on the receiver’s collection of

6 all the documents since 2013 that established these allegations.

7           And the receiver then goes through one, two, three,

8 four, five, six, seven bullet points of information that the

9 receiver has in its possession.  Oh, I'm sorry, seven, eight,

10 nine, ten, eleven, twelve pieces of information, documentation

11 that was supplied to the board either by Uni-Ter or by the

12 commissioner of insurance saying don’t rely -- you don’t have to

13 rely on the information that Uni-Ter is providing to you.

14           This is the commissioner of insurance saying for this

15 reason, this reason, and this reason, your company has real

16 problems and you need to take immediate action to -- to avert

17 the financial disaster that eventually occurred.

18           And this is the most important part here.  The

19 receiver goes on to state that the board had all of this

20 information from Uni-Ter and from the Department of Insurance,

21 and -- and then states if the board saw and reviewed all of this

22 information as alleged, they were grossly negligent in not

23 taking immediate corrective action by at least 2011, for

24 example, by raising premium rates.

25           Alternatively, if the board did not review or
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1 understand this information, they were grossly negligent by not

2 taking action to inform themselves of the factual condition of

3 L&C.

4           So what we have, Your Honor, is based on the

5 receiver’s collection of all the documentation related to L&C

6 back during the relevant time frame, the receiver has alleged

7 that for all of these reasons, all the documents that it cites

8 in those 12 bullet points which are taken directly out of the

9 third amended complaint, that the receiver had possession of

10 these documents, knows that the board had that information, and

11 is saying either the board failed to take action after reviewing

12 it and was grossly negligent for that reason, or the board

13 failed to review that information and was grossly negligent for

14 not reviewing it.

15           So in essence, the board -- the receiver says -- is --

16 is saying this company died and the board of directors are

17 responsible and, Uni-Ter, you're responsible.  Uni-Ter, you

18 brought a knife to the fight, but the board shot the company. 

19 There is no way that there can be an allegation that survives

20 that Uni-Ter bring a knife to the fight constitutes the -- the

21 basis or the reason for the corporation dying.

22           The board of directors, as alleged by the receiver,

23 either took the information and disregarded it or didn’t look at

24 it.  Either way, it’s grossly negligent and the actions -- and

25 those acts or omissions supersede any conduct by Uni-Ter UMC in
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1 providing purportedly inaccurate or unreliable information.  And

2 for that reason the receiver has pleaded itself out of a claim

3 for negligent misrepresentation asserted against Uni-Ter UMC.

4           THE COURT:  Thank you, Mr. Ogilvie.

5           In order to -- for the comfort of the Court, I need a

6 five-minute recess.  We started at 9:30 this morning.  And I

7 don’t want to cut you off, so we’ll be in recess for about five

8 minutes.  Thank you.

9 (Court recessed at 11:50 a.m., until 11:56 p.m.)

10           THE COURT:  And your opposition, please.

11           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  At the outset I

12 think -- I think it’s important to point out that Uni-Ter is

13 correct that the Court is required to take the allegations of

14 the complaint as true for purposes of the motion to dismiss. 

15 This complaint does state that L&C, Lewis and Clark, relied

16 justifiably on Uni-Ter.  That is what this complaint states.

17           And really essentially what Uni-Ter is arguing is that

18 under its, and I don’t think there would be any dispute,

19 self-serving interpretation of the facts, they don’t believe

20 that it’s consistent with the other claims.  But really what

21 this complaint says is that there was some wrongdoing on

22 multiple parts.  And absolutely those claims, we believe, it’s

23 our position, can go forward for the reasons that we mentioned

24 in our briefing which I would incorporate in the argument here. 

25 But the complaint does state that Uni-Ter -- excuse me, that
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1 Lewis and Clark justifiably relied on the board -- excuse me,

2 Uni-Ter.

3           What I want to get to preliminarily is the -- a couple

4 of things that I think kind of permeate their motion that show

5 that it’s not appropriate for a motion to dismiss.  They cite in

6 their motion and rely pretty much exclusively for the -- for

7 their conclusions on the facts in the case of Safeco, a Ninth

8 Circuit unreported decision.  That was a case with some pretty

9 important distinctions to the case here.

10           There had been a trial and I think that that is a key

11 issue that is presented both in the pleadings and in Uni-Ter’s

12 argument today, they're essentially arguing facts.  They are

13 asking this Court to take into account facts that are not in

14 that complaint, well outside of the complaint, and make factual

15 findings that are up to the -- that are within the scope of the

16 jury’s determination.

17           The other thing is the Safeco case involves plaintiffs

18 who are individuals, so there’s no issue regarding imputation. 

19 The motion doesn’t really raise that, so we went into that.  And

20 that gets us quickly to the adverse interest exception.  Nevada

21 law does state that this is a narrow exception, absolutely.  We

22 100 percent agree with that.  However, there are no -- there are

23 no magic words that are required for this exception to apply. 

24 It’s a result of a factual determinations that are made, which,

25 again, is improper for Uni-Ter to ask this Court to make the
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1 determination on a motion to dismiss.

2           But just going down that road a little ways, Lewis and

3 Clark would obviously request leave to amend if the Court found

4 that there were magic words.  But I don’t -- I don’t think that

5 the case law that they cited, that we cited, as well, that we

6 brought to the Court’s attention requires that.  What the case

7 law says is -- and, again, I think an important distinction is

8 that Uni-Ter focuses a lot on whether there was a benefit to the

9 board’s actions to the board.  That’s not the analysis.  The

10 analysis is whether there was a benefit to the company.

11           And we alleged -- plaintiff alleged claims against the

12 board for gross negligence, the individual directors and

13 officers, and as the Court rightly pointed out, deepening the

14 insolvency.  And that’s critical because that claim basically

15 says that the -- the corporation, the company was kept alive a

16 lot longer than it should have been to its significant

17 detriment.

18           And we actually have case law, we cited the Shacked

19 (phonetic) case out of the Seventh Circuit that addresses that

20 specific issue with that specific claim and concludes in many of

21 the same issues that we’re going on in this case loss of

22 millions of dollars, loss of positive investments and assets. 

23 It states -- the Shacked court stated that these all, quote,

24 aggravated reserves insolvency in no way can these results be

25 described as beneficial to reserve.
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1           Same thing that we have here.  Clearly the board,

2 according to the complaint, was grossly negligent, they deepen

3 the insolvency of the company, and that cannot in any way be

4 said to benefit Lewis and Clark, and, in fact, that’s why we’re

5 here, that’s why receivership was appointed.

6           In a separate context, and I think this goes to kind

7 of the common sense aspect of it, and as the Court pointed out,

8 there are legal distinctions between, you know, the company,

9 individuals, managers, separate legal entities, and that’s why

10 we have sued the individual directors.  And --

11           THE COURT:  That brings -- that kind of begs the

12 question, which I think I directed to Mr. Ogilvie or I heard

13 from his argument, is can you maintain causes of action for

14 negligent misrepresentation against Uni-Ter at the same time you

15 maintain a cause of action against the individual board members

16 for gross negligence?  Do you have to choose a remedy?

17           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Your Honor, I don’t think that you do

18 have to choose a remedy, particularly at this point.  We’re at

19 the -- we’re at the motion to dismiss stage, and I think that

20 what -- jumping ahead to address that issue, Uni-Ter argued,

21 well, this is kind of like a situation where you have a motion

22 or a complaint that states a breach of contract claim and a

23 complaint that -- and also states a claim for unjust -- or for

24 good faith -- breach of covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

25           I think a better analogy here is the receiver is
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1 coming in.  We’re finding out what happened.  Obviously, that’s

2 the purpose of a complaint, find out -- of a lawsuit, find out

3 what happened, make those allegations, go forward, let the --

4 let the jury, or the judge if it’s a bench trial, make those

5 factual determinations.  A better analogy, I think, is a

6 complaint where you have a claim for breach of an oral contract,

7 and also a claim for breach of -- or rather, I'm sorry, not

8 breach, but unjust enrichment.

9           Because ultimately, yeah, there may need to be a

10 decision to be made.  But for purposes of that complaint going

11 forward, the fact of the matter is the Court is required, for

12 purposes of a motion to dismiss, to take all factual allegations

13 as true.  The fact finder is not.  The fact finder, the point of

14 the fact finder is to figure out what happened.

15           And it’s absolutely possible that the jury in this

16 case says, well, actually, we think the board did justifiably

17 rely on Uni-Ter, Uni-Ter is liable.  It could go the other way,

18 as well.  Again, we -- our position is the adverse interest

19 exception applies.  We think that’s a factual determination that

20 would be inappropriate for Uni-Ter to ask this Court to resolve

21 on a motion to dismiss.

22           But we think with the adverse interest exception

23 applying, because the board’s knowledge or lack of knowledge

24 cannot be imputed to the plaintiff, which is a separate legal

25 entity, that we are allowed to go forward with those claims. 
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1 It’s possible that the jury determines the board justifiably

2 relied on Uni-Ter.  It’s possible that they find that they

3 didn’t.  But those claims can go forward at this point.

4           And, again, under Nevada law, if that adverse interest

5 exception applies, and we submit that it does, and that with the

6 claims that we’ve pled against the board and against Uni-Ter,

7 those -- those are not mutually exclusive claims because of that

8 interest, the adverse interest exception.  But even if it was,

9 that -- that jury determination can be made, and we’re allowed

10 to go forward with those alternative pleading claims.

11           One issue I would like to point to, as well, is the --

12 the sole actor exception.  I think there has been quite a bit

13 discussed with respect to the distinct legal entities and

14 factual issues that were raised.  And I believe that the

15 statement was made there’s no factual distinction between these

16 entities and the individual board members.

17           Your Honor, we would submit we would disagree with

18 that.  We would submit that is an issue for trial, an issue of

19 fact.  These individuals wore multiple hats.  And that’s not

20 uncommon, necessarily, but it certainly prevents a motion to

21 dismiss when what we’re asserting is a claim that the -- that

22 Lewis and Clark justifiably relied on these individuals

23 depending on which hats they were wearing.  Very factually

24 intensive, inappropriate for a motion to dismiss.

25           I wanted to hit a couple of other highlights.  Other
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1 courts in related context have held, and I think the quotation

2 is so good, with the Court’s indulgence I would read it out of

3 the Clark case that we cited.  Regardless of whether the alleged

4 wrongdoing was intentional or merely negligent, the knowledge of

5 officers’ and directors’ wrongdoing cannot be imputed to the

6 corporation because those officers and directors’ control over

7 the corporation prevents it from learning of the misconduct that

8 it’s injuring it.

9           And I think from a practical standpoint it’s important

10 to remember Uni-Ter is not saying they didn’t do anything wrong. 

11 They're just saying somebody else may have done something wrong,

12 too, so let us out on the chance the jury decides that, you

13 know, there was no justifiable reliance.

14           Again, the jury could go either way on that issue. 

15 And they're welcome to argue that to the jury or a motion for

16 summary judgment if they deem that appropriate.  But on a motion

17 to dismiss, Your Honor, we would submit that is inappropriate. 

18 If the Court has any other questions.

19           THE COURT:  I don’t.

20           MR. WIRTHLIN:  We’ll rest on the pleadings.

21           THE COURT:  Thank you.

22           And the reply, please.

23           MR. OGILVIE:  Your Honor, I think the identification

24 of this exception to the general rule of agency is -- is

25 enlightening.  And that is the adverse interest exception such
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1 that the board or the agent, the board member or the agent had

2 an interest, interest, that was adverse to the interests of the

3 corporation.  And there isn't any allegation here that such

4 adverse interests exists.

5           There’s only an allegation that the board members

6 essentially failed to satisfy the business judgment rule.  They

7 -- there’s no allegation of self-gain.  There’s no allegation of

8 gain to the individual shareholders that those board members

9 represented.  There’s simply an allegation that they grossly --

10 were grossly negligent in the performance of their duties.

11           There was -- there isn't any adverse interest in that

12 they were stealing money or embezzling or -- or doing something

13 to benefit a third-party that they somehow had a relationship

14 with.  And that’s what the adverse interest rules is intended to

15 apply to.  That is the exception that the Nevada Supreme Court

16 is referring to to the general rule of agency where information

17 that is related to an agent is imputed to the -- the

18 corporation.

19           And that is why the Supreme Court said there are --

20 that it is a very narrow exception, and that is why the Supreme

21 Court referenced embezzlement and theft.  There had to be more

22 than they acted in a way that didn’t benefit the corporation. 

23 Maybe they did, maybe they didn’t.  They certainly -- the

24 allegations certainly are there that the board members acted in

25 a way that didn’t benefit the corporation.
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1           But Uni-Ter submits that that is not enough to satisfy

2 the adverse interest exception because there wasn’t some

3 ulterior motive.  There isn't an allegation that there was some

4 gain by this such that the interests of the individual board

5 members were adverse to the interest of the corporation.  And

6 Uni-Ter submits that that is required in order to find that

7 exception.

8           THE COURT:  Thank you, Mr. Ogilvie.

9           So the first motion is submitted.  Now the motion on

10 behalf of the individuals, Ms. Ochoa.

11           MS. OCHOA:  Good morning, Your Honor.  I just wanted

12 to make sure that I complete the record.  There was some

13 statements about that all the board members were shareholders

14 and -- and one isn't.  Dr. Carol Harter, she is not a

15 shareholder.  I just want to make sure that the Court doesn’t

16 think that I knew something and I didn’t disclose it.  But

17 that’s -- that’s just the facts.

18           Just to make sure that everybody is all on the same

19 page, this is my motion to dismiss and I'm seeking relief for

20 the dismissal of the third amended complaint.  I know when we

21 stated this journey it was to dismiss the first amended

22 complaint, but along the way the plaintiff filed a second

23 amended complaint.

24           And so we took a look at that and we tried to

25 supplement the record with what was changed, with in the
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1 citations from the motion, the first initial motion, to what

2 would have been changed in the second amended complaint.  And in

3 doing so, the second -- the supplement, the first supplement

4 doesn’t have every single citation that was in the motion or the

5 reply.  It has only the things that were changed.

6           So if -- so, for example, from the first to the second

7 amended complaint, the exhibits were not changed, so I did not

8 reflect that in that supplement.  So I just wanted to make sure

9 the Court is aware of that.

10           And then the third amended complaint was filed, and by

11 the time the third amended complaint was filed, there was no

12 changes from what we had previously cited in the record, so

13 that’s kind of where we are today.

14           So as to the meat of the motion to dismiss, it’s

15 really based on two things, that no reasonable person could

16 interpret plaintiff’s allegations to support a claim for gross

17 negligence, and that the statute of limitations had passed.  The

18 complaint was supposed to be filed by September 2014 based on

19 the allegations made in the complaint that was filed in December

20 of 2014.

21           So as to the first, the first issue, I know the

22 plaintiff claims that negligence is an issue for the jury, but

23 all of the case law that we -- that we cited in support of a

24 dismissal of a gross negligence claim was at either a motion to

25 dismiss stage or before the issue went to the trier of fact.  So
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1 that does mean that it is within the Judge’s province to decide

2 whether the claims can support gross negligence.  And we found

3 that the -- that the rule is if no reasonable person could find

4 that there was gross negligence.

5           So, you know, I know the complaint is over 200

6 paragraphs.  It’s filled with exhibits.  So I don’t want to, you

7 know, go over every single fact that supports that my clients

8 actually looked at the information, discussed it, asked for more

9 information, and then ultimately made a decision.  I think

10 that’s definitely within the Court’s ability to go through all

11 of that.

12           But I just want the Court to, if they haven't already

13 decided, think about a few things that were alleged in the

14 complaint, and that’s this ideal that my clients are liable

15 because they weren't informed, they were misinformed, they did

16 not timely act, and they took the wrong actions.  So under the

17 case law, my clients cannot be liable for anything other than

18 being uninformed.  You know, this idea that they were

19 misinformed, they're entitled to rely on what their experts

20 advise them.  So it’s --

21           THE COURT:  Isn't your argument that if they exercise

22 any degree of care, a gross negligence cause of action can’t --

23           MS. OCHOA:  Right.

24           THE COURT:  -- be maintained?

25           MS. OCHOA:  And on top of that, when you look at the
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1 actual facts, it does show that they received information, that

2 they processed it, they talked about it in these minutes, it’s

3 reflected in these minutes.  They asked questions, they

4 discussed it, and they finally made a decision one way or

5 another.  So that -- that’s -- we contend is sufficient to be

6 more than -- more than they -- they fulfilled their requisite

7 duty of care.

8           Then the other issue is this idea that my clients

9 could not justifiably rely on Uni-Ter.  When you look at the

10 facts, this -- this risk retention group was created in 2004. 

11 It was going along just fine, and then in 2010 they were advised

12 by the Nevada Division of Insurance that they -- they had some

13 problems.

14           So from 2010 through 2011, they did things.  They

15 tried to -- they tried to increase -- increase commissions for

16 their insurance agents to bring in more business, to bring in

17 more policies.  They sent out -- they -- they allowed for audits

18 of the claims to see what was going on.  And eventually, and it

19 wasn’t long after that, in September 2012, they were the ones

20 that asked the Nevada Division of Insurance to put the risk

21 retention group into rehabilitation.

22           So they did all these kind of acts to help the -- the

23 plaintiff.  So my point is there was no -- there was nothing to

24 trigger them to say, oh, I shouldn’t rely on Uni-Ter.  At least

25 it’s not alleged in the complaint.
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1           So this gets me to the last issue, which is that the

2 statute of limitations had -- had lapsed in September of 2014. 

3 And the first time we came around to this case, the allegations

4 were basically my clients did all this bad after September of

5 2011.  The first amended complaint was expanded so that my

6 clients did all these bad acts in like 2009, 2010, 2011.

7           So it wasn’t really an issue the first time around,

8 but now it is an issue because under the catchall statute, the

9 statute of limitations is four years for the plaintiff to have

10 brought an action.  So by the pleadings in the complaint, the

11 plaintiff claims that in September of 2010 they wrote a letter

12 to us to tell us that our -- that the risk retention group was

13 in trouble, and this all stems from acts done in 2009, which was

14 the inclusion of some multi-operation groups.

15           So according to the math and the discovery rule, that

16 would mean that the plaintiff was supposed to bring their

17 complaint by September of 2014.  They brought it in December of

18 2014.  We submit that that’s untimely and it should be

19 dismissed.

20           THE COURT:  Thank you, Ms. Ochoa.

21           The opposition, please.

22           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Our first

23 argument is on the negligence issues.  And I'm just going to

24 quote from the Nevada case law, Nehls v. Leonard, 97 Nev. 325. 

25 Quote, in Nevada issues of negligence and proximate cause are
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1 considered issues of fact and not of law and, thus, they are for

2 the jury to resolve, end quote.

3           I think that, if I remember correctly, and if I'm

4 wrong I'm sure I’ll be -- opposing counsel can correct me.  But

5 I don’t believe they cited any binding Nevada case law authority

6 that -- that shows any kind of exception, particularly here

7 where gross negligence is alleged.

8           And I want to clarify this.  It’s my understanding

9 this motion only relates to the gross negligence.  This Court

10 has already found that deepening the insolvency is a -- is a

11 valid claim.  But after the prior motion to dismiss on the

12 negligence issue --

13           THE COURT:  Well, I think I said it was collateral to

14 negligence or gross negligence.

15           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Correct.  Correct, Your Honor.  And I'm

16 sorry.

17           THE COURT:  And this motion is directed only as to the

18 gross negligence.

19           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Okay.  Thank you, Your Honor.

20           THE COURT:  That’s the way I understood it.

21           MS. OCHOA:  Right.

22           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Okay.  And I say that because we -- we

23 went back through and, at what we understood to be our

24 direction, to go back through and -- and look for those

25 allegations that, if we could find them, would raise -- rise to
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1 the level of gross negligence.  And we looked at the case law

2 and it certainly is a standard that we -- that we had to look at

3 and amend the complaint.

4           And, frankly, I am glad that we had that direction

5 from this Court to go do that.  We went back through more

6 thoroughly.  Obviously, there are a lot of documents in this

7 case.  There are documents we don’t have.  But we were able to

8 find some pretty significant issues with respect to gross

9 negligence.  We have alleged those.  I don’t want to rely on our

10 pleadings in the complaint, but in particular those letters. 

11 Particularly that 2011 letter.

12           And I did want to clarify one thing.  If I -- if I

13 heard the individual defendants’ counsel correctly to state that

14 we, Lewis and Clark, had written them a letter, it was -- and

15 maybe that’s -- maybe I misunderstood, it was actually the

16 Department of Insurance that wrote that letter and -- and sent

17 it to those individual defendants and said, you know, in

18 September of 2011, you’ve got some -- some real problems here. 

19 That was a culmination of a lot that had happened.

20           And in our complaint we give more background back to

21 2009 on some of the things that had happened, but that doesn’t

22 necessarily mean that that’s -- negligence began then.  And not

23 only that, I would like to point out that what we’ve got here is

24 negligence that was -- that was kind of taken continual -- on a

25 continual basis culminating in a receivership being appointed,
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1 that didn’t happen until 2012.

2           So even under that standard, we would submit that the

3 discovery rule would apply here and the facts that we allege are

4 much later than the 2009 background information we provided. 

5 The other thing is I think that before we even get there, Judge

6 Gonzalez’s liquidation order answers the question conclusively. 

7 So I guess I would -- unless the Court has any questions, I rest

8 on the pleadings.

9           THE COURT:  Thank you.

10           And your reply, please.

11           MS. OCHOA:  Just a short issue.  I didn’t really bring

12 it up in the reply because I didn’t think it was that big of a

13 deal, but, you know, the quote that negligence is only in the

14 province of the jury is just -- it’s just not quite right.  It’s

15 been a long time since I've looked at that case law that was

16 cited.  But we all know negligence is made up duty, breach,

17 causation, damages.

18           Duty is always -- always dismissed, is a basis to

19 dismiss a negligence claim.  And that’s absolutely within the

20 jury’s -- the Judge’s discretion.  So, you know, it’s not quite

21 accurate that negligence is always within the trier of the

22 facts’ ability.

23           THE COURT:  Thank you both.

24           All right.  Both matters are now under submission.  We

25 have the Uni-Ter motion to dismiss the negligent
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1 misrepresentation cause of action and third amended complaint

2 under 12(b) for failure to state a claim, and then we have the

3 individual defendants’ motion to dismiss the third amended

4 complaint with regard to gross negligence.

5           I'm going to deny both motions at this time for the

6 following reasons.  I'm governed by 12(b)(5), and that’s if the

7 plaintiff can state a claim for which relief can be granted, I

8 have to assume all of the facts in the third amended complaint

9 are true.  And so I can't determine the quality of the facts at

10 this point.  I would -- in order to grant the motions that have

11 been brought, I would have to determine whether or not there was

12 justifiable reliance by Uni-Ter, and justifiability is a factual

13 issue.

14           With regard to the board, I’d have to determine

15 whether or not they exercised the correct degree of care.  And I

16 understand the argument very clearly, that any exercise of care

17 exempts them from a gross negligence claim.  But at this point

18 at least, only based upon the third amended complaint, they

19 stated a claim for which relief can be granted.

20           Now -- and that’s with caution to the plaintiff.  It

21 may well be after some discovery that that gross negligence

22 cause of action is going to go away.  But at this point you’ve

23 stated a claim, so I'm not going to dismiss the complaint, the

24 third amended complaint with regard to that.

25           And I am very appreciative of the quality of briefs
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1 all around because this is a fairly new issue for me.  I had to

2 spend a lot of time to get up to speed on the nuances of the

3 collective insurance groups.  But they’ve stated a complaint for

4 which relief can be granted finally.

5           With regard to the statute of limitations argument

6 raised by the board members, the statute of limitation argument,

7 the liquidation order for receivership established deadlines and

8 statutes of limitation, and I find that that supersedes for the

9 purpose of the receivership.  So for that reason, that argument

10 is rejected.

11           And Mr. Wirthlin to prepare the orders.  Make sure

12 that your opposing counsel can review and approve to the form of

13 those orders.

14           MR. WIRTHLIN:  Certainly, Your Honor.  Thank you.

15           THE COURT:  And thank you all.

16           MS. OCHOA:  Thank you.

17           MR. OGILVIE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

18 (Proceedings concluded at 12:22 p.m.)

19 * * * * *

20

21

22

23

24

25
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-ENTITLED
MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

Julie Potter
Kingman, AZ 86402
(702) 635-0301
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